

Municipality of Northern Bruce Peninsula

MUNICIPALITY OF

NORTHERN BRUCE PENINSULA

Tender PW 2025-05

For the Rental of Tandem Snowplow Trucks with One-way Plow, Wing and Sander with Operator and the Rental of a Sidewalk/Parking Lot Blower and Sander with Operator

Duration of contract shall be three winter seasons: 2025/2026, 2026/2027, 2027/2028

Closing Date: Thursday, August 7, 2025

2:00 p.m. Local Time

Tender Opening: Thursday, August 7, 2025

2:05 p.m. Local Time

Northern Bruce Peninsula Municipal Office

56 Lindsay Road 5 Lion's Head, Ontario

Contact: Troy Cameron, Public Works Manager

Municipality of Northern Bruce Peninsula

56 Lindsay Road 5, Lion's Head, Ontario NOH 1W0

Telephone: 1(888) 793-3537 ext. 232 Email: pwmanager@northernbruce.ca

Table of Contents

Due Date	4
Truck Rentals	4
Tandem Snowplow Routes	4
Sidewalk Blower and Sander	4
Supply and Maintenance of Equipment	5
Hours of Work	
Liability Statement	6
Indemnification	6
Insurance	6
General Information	6
Protection of Work and Property	6
Wages	
Fuel Escalation/De-Escalation	7
Workers' Compensation Act	8
Option to Inspect	8
Failure to Perform Work	9
Winter Control Handbook	9
Safety	9
Liquidated Damages	9
Specifications	
Trucks	10
Snowplow Equipment	10
Sidewalk Equipment	11
Tractor and Blower	11
Contract PW 2022-05, Rental Cost	12
Tandem Snowplow Routes	12
Tobermory Sidewalk Blower and Sander Route	12
Truck Details	
Contract PW 2022-05, Rental Cost - Continued	
Sidewalk Equipment Details	14

Snowblower and Tractor Details	14
Termination	15
Contractor's Information	15
Accessibility Regulations for Contracted Services	16
Compliance with Applicable Legislation	16
Third Party Health, Safety and Environment Manual	17
Commitment Agreement	17

Due Date

Tenders shall be submitted to the Office of the Municipality of Northern Bruce Peninsula by Thursday, August 7, 2025, at 2:00 p.m.

Truck Rentals

The Municipality of Northern Bruce Peninsula has the intention of contracting out three of the following four snowplow patrol routes and the Tobermory Sidewalk and Parking Lot Route.

The Municipality reserves the right to select any number of areas to be performed by a private contractor.

Tandem Snowplow Routes

Truck Rental	Approximate Kilometres		
Cape Chin Area	44.56		
Dorcas Bay Road Area	38.94		
Dyers Bay and Lindsay Road 30 Area	47.67		
Pike Bay Area	37.42		

Please see attached for Patrol route descriptions and detailed locations.

Sidewalk Blower and Sander

Tobermory Sidewalks and Parking Lots: please see attached for detailed locations.

Plow and sander routes may be adjusted as required by the Municipality with no change in standby rates. All routes shall correspond with the Municipality of Northern Bruce Peninsula's Winter Control Handbook for the current year, as amended from time to time. A copy of the Winter Control Handbook can be viewed online at www.northbrucepeninsula.ca.

Please use a separate Tender for each route quoted on.

Lowest or any tender not necessarily accepted.

Supply and Maintenance of Equipment

- 1. The equipment owners are responsible for all parts and repairs on the equipment supplied by the contractor.
- 2. The contractor will be required to house and station their truck at a location within 15 kilometres of the closest road within the beat tendered.
- 3. All repairs are to be carried out as soon as possible.
- The contractor supplying equipment must have a valid Commercial Vehicle
 Operator's Registration (CVOR) for the duration of the contract. A copy of the CVOR
 and ownership must be submitted within 14 calendar days of the awarding of the
 contract.
- 5. Equipment inspections, certifications, pollutions standards, etc. in accordance with the Ontario Ministry of Transportation (MTO) requirements, will be required and will be considered as a non-payable component.
- 6. The Municipality may install radios and GPS fleet management equipment each fall at no cost to the contractor and may choose to have it removed each spring.

Hours of Work

- The truck and operators shall be available for work 24 hours per day, seven days a
 week, commencing December 1 and concluding March 31 of the following year. This
 may be deferred at the discretion of the Municipality. The contractor must have
 sufficient staff available to operate continuously, if necessary.
- Hours of Work Restrictions The regulations made under the Highway Traffic Act, Ontario Regulation 555/06, Hours of Service, as amended from time to time, will apply to the operation of the equipment used for routine maintenance operations.
- 3. The contractor shall submit, in writing, the names, addresses, telephone numbers, Driver's Licence numbers and Class of Licence for all operators to the Municipality no later than December 1 for each year of the contract. The contractor will be responsible for training their staff. Failure to provide a list of operators will result in the loss of standby and possible termination of contract.
- 4. The operator(s) of the contractor's truck(s) must be available by telephone and the truck operators located as to be able to proceed operations within 30 minutes of being telephoned. An answering service will be allowed, provided a paging system is utilized.
- 5. No other operators shall be used unless the Municipality is notified at least five days in advance of the names, addresses, telephone numbers, Driver's Licence numbers and Class of Licence of the persons to be added to the list.
- Time to be counted as working hours commences when the plow starts plowing and continues until operations are completed. All discrepancies with hours worked will be determined by and at the final discretion of the Municipality's GPS program.

7. The Municipality cannot guarantee any minimum hours of work for the contractor. All plowing hours are strictly weather related. The contractor will commence work according to the Municipality of Northern Bruce Peninsula's Winter Control Handbook.

Liability Statement

Indemnification

The contractor shall indemnify the Municipality, its officers, employees and agents from all claims, demands, actions or other proceedings initiated by others arising out of or attributable to anything done or omitted to be done by the contractor, its officers, employees or agents in connection with the services performed or required to be performed under this contract.

Insurance

As per By-law 2025-70, Purchasing Policy, the contractor shall furnish the Municipality, at their cost, with a copy of a liability insurance policy covering public liability and property damage for no less than \$2,500,000.00 (general liability and automobile liability policies) and shall remain in effect for the entire contract period. The policy must contain:

- A "Cross Liability" clause or endorsement;
- An endorsement certifying that the Corporation of the Municipality of Northern Bruce Peninsula and the successful bidder are included as an additional name insureds; and
- An endorsement to the effect that the policy or policies will not be altered, cancelled or allowed to lapse without 30 days prior written notice to the Municipality of Northern Bruce Peninsula.

Contractor's Liability Insurance Policy shall not contain any exclusion of liability for damage, etc. to property, building or land.

The contractor shall provide proof of insurance (Certificate of Insurance or Certified copy of Policy) to the Municipality before December 1 for each of the three years under the duration of the contract.

General Information

Protection of Work and Property

The contractor shall be held responsible by the Municipality for all damage caused by themself, their employees, or any subcontractors, including but not limited to damage to

vehicles, subsurface utilities, properties, pavement, sidewalks, curbs, buildings, homes or structures adjacent to or in the general area of the work, through any other cause relating to the work carried out under the contract. Additionally, the contractor will be required to make good all such damage at their own expense to the satisfaction of both the owner and the Municipality.

The contractor shall be fully responsible for all accidents arising by reason of execution or non-execution, or non-repairs of the said works, or by reason of any failure to comply with the requirements of this clause and shall fully indemnify the Municipality in respect thereof.

Wages

The contractor shall be responsible for payment of the wages of any operator hired, and when required, shall furnish evidence to the satisfaction of the Municipality that these wages have been paid in full. If the contractor fails to do so, the Municipality shall have the right to withhold payment for such sums of money due that would be sufficient to cover the default. The contractor's employees are not employees of the Municipality under any circumstances whatsoever.

Fuel Escalation/De-Escalation

The Municipality recognizes the volatility of the fuel market and provides for an adjustment (increase or decrease) to the hourly rate paid based upon the Petro Canada rack fuel price of Ultra Low Sulphur (ULS) Diesel – Toronto, ON. This posted rack price is based upon the average weekly rack fuel price (the average of daily rack pricing from Saturday to Friday, effective the next Saturday). The fuel escalation/de-escalation rate is to be applied on each invoice based on the corresponding weekly rack price. Bidders are asked to submit pricing based upon Petro Canada weekly rack fuel price of \$1.0556 per litre on July 19, 2025.

For each change, plus or minus \$0.05 in the rack price, the hourly tendered price will be adjusted plus or minus \$1.00.

Fuel Costs	Price Range/Litre	Per Hour Rate	
From price to price	\$0.80 to \$0.84	Subtract \$4.00 per hour	
From price to price	\$0.85 to \$0.89	Subtract \$3.00 per hour	
From price to price	\$0.90 to \$0.94	Subtract \$2.00 per hour	
From price to price	\$0.95 to \$0.99	Subtract \$1.00 per hour	
Base price	\$1.05 +/- \$0.05	Contract rate	
Base price From price to price	\$1.05 +/- \$0.05 \$1.11 to \$1.15	Contract rate Add \$1.00 per hour	
The second secon	960 SHE 400 FED NO FED NO SE		
From price to price	\$1.11 to \$1.15	Add \$1.00 per hour	

In the case of fuel prices per litre increasing/reducing further than shown on the above chart, per hour rate would increase/decrease at the same ratio.

Standby

The designated sum shall not be paid if the equipment is not available to start work as required and will be paid for every day that the equipment is under contract and available. Standby shall be paid from the start of the winter season, December 1, until it is dismissed at the end of the winter control season, at a minimum on March 31.

Workers' Compensation Act

The Municipality does not cover the contractor or their employees under the *Workers' Compensation Act*. The contractor is responsible for paying all dues and assessments payable under the *Workers' Compensation Act*, the *Unemployment Insurance Act* or any other act, whether Provincial or Federal, for themself and employees for all winter operations. The contractor shall, upon request, furnish the Municipality with satisfactory evidence that they have complied with the provisions of such acts. If the contractor fails to do so, the Municipality shall have the right to withhold payment of such sum or sums of money due to him/her that would be sufficient to cover their defaults and the Municipality shall have the right to pay the same. Information on coverage under *the Workers' Compensation Act* can be obtained directly from the Workers' Compensation Board.

Option to Inspect

The contractor may inspect, with the Patrol Supervisor, in advance of any plowing operations, all roadways within their designated area of plowing, noting the location of protruding man holes, catch basins, culvert ends, curbing ends, utility installations, mailboxes, signs, guide rails, bridges, homes/buildings close to the pavement and hazardous locations. The contractor must ensure that no damage is caused to such installations, plant, equipment, homes or other facilities during plowing operations. If, in the opinion of the Patrol Supervisor, unreasonable or preventable damage results to

Municipal or private property as a result of the contractor's plowing operations, then the contractor shall be responsible and shall reimburse the Municipality or landowner the cost of repairing the damage.

Failure to Perform Work

If the contractor fails to perform the work or fails to perform it to the satisfaction of the Municipality, or fails to comply with any of the conditions specified in this contract, they shall be liable for any loss or damage suffered by the Municipality as a result of their default and the Municipality may deduct the amount of its damages from any monies due or to become due to them from any source whatsoever.

Winter Control Handbook

The contractor shall perform work in coordination with the Municipality of Northern Bruce Peninsula's Winter Control Handbook, as amended from time to time.

Safety

- The contractor must comply with the Occupational Health and Safety Act & Regulations, R.S.O. 1990, and will be responsible for the compliance therewith of any of their drivers or employees while working on this contract.
- The contractor will supply and ensure that all operators use protective clothing and/or devices as set out in the Ontario Occupational Health and Safety Act & Regulations, R.S.O. 1990.
- 3. The minimum age of the operators will be 18.

Liquidated Damages

- It is agreed by the parties of this contract, in addition to the third-party liabilities set out above, that in case the plow with necessary personnel is not available to proceed with plowing when required by the Patrol Supervisor or their designate, or if available, the contractor's operator refuses or delays in proceeding with the plowing as directed by the Patrol Supervisor, damaged will be sustained by the Municipality.
- 2. Since it will be impracticable to ascertain and determine the actual damage which the Municipality will sustain in the event of, and by reason of such delay or such failure of the equipment or personnel to be ready, the parties agree that the contractor will be required to pay the Municipality liquidated damages in the following amounts:
 - a. \$150.00 for the first hour or fraction thereof after 30 minutes notification has been given by the Patrol Supervisor. This charge will continue until:
 - i. The contractor's plow commences work; or
 - ii. The Patrol Supervisor has ordered snowplowing operations to cease.
 - b. \$100.00 per hour for every hour or fraction thereof after the initial hour of not being able to continue operations due to a failure of the contractor's equipment. This charge will continue until:

- i. The contractor's plow commences work; or
- ii. The Patrol Supervisor has ordered snowplowing operations to cease.
- 3. Notwithstanding the above, in the case of the truck being broken down or otherwise unavailable, the loss of standby time payment shall be enforced.

Specifications

The trucks and snowplow equipment shall meet the following specifications:

Trucks

- The truck inspection sticker must bear an inspection date of September 1 or later for each year of the contract.
- Trucks shall have a minimum manufacturer's front axle rating of 18,000 lbs. The
 contractor shall supply the Municipality with proof of front axle rating (a setback front
 axle is acceptable).
- Trucks shall have a minimum alternator output of 110 amps.
- Trucks shall be equipped with traction type dual rear tires.
- Trucks shall be equipped with all equipment, accessories and licences required by the Ontario Highway Traffic Act and any other acts, regulations or by-laws that apply to truck operation.
- Trucks shall meet the Ontario Ministry of Transportation's specifications for lighting requirements.
- Trucks must be equipped with an alcohol evaporator for the air brake system or an air drier.
- Trucks must be equipped with braking on all axles.
- The speedometer, odometer and the hour meter shall be working accurately.
- Trucks shall have tandem front mounted hydraulic pumps capable of operating the plow, wing and sander simultaneously; minimum 30 gpm.
- Trucks shall have fender tripod mounted 8" convex mirrors, on both left and right fenders.
- Trucks shall have a front wing post convex mirror (8" or 12") on wing post.
- Trucks shall have an in-cab fan for clearing the windows.
- Truck cab mirrors shall be the heated type.
- Regulation Snowplow lights

Snowplow Equipment

 Trucks shall be equipped with a full hydraulic tower, a front frame mount, 12 foot one-way snowplow (a Frink model 450 SK.8, Viking model 135 HSE9 or approved equal). The wing shall be 12 feet long (a Frink model 311-12R, Viking model 144-WH-D or approved equal).

- The operations of all snowplow equipment must be controlled from within the cab and the controls must be convenient to the driver.
- A revolving blue light on the cab or wing tower and the yellow flashing light on the back frame shall be supplied and mounted by the contractor.
- Wings must be equipped with a tripping device and one-way plows equipped with hydraulic roll.
- Sander unit must meet the Municipality's approval and have a carrying capacity of 10 cubic yards or more.

Sidewalk Equipment

- Sidewalk winter maintenance equipment must be suitable to provide snow and slush removal, along with sanding/salting functions. Winter maintenance activities must be completed behind hydro poles and other narrow areas that may require handwork.
- Handwork is required for, but may not be limited, to the Tobermory Clinic, Library and downtown.

Tractor and Blower

 Parking lot and street winter maintenance equipment must be a minimum of 7-foot blower and a minimum of 85 horsepower and have the capabilities for salting and sanding.

Contract PW 2025-05, Rental Cost

The daily standby rate for hired equipment is	s \$150.00 per day for plow truck and
\$100.00 per day for the tractor, sidewalk and	d snowblower contract.
I,	, do hereby offer to rent a truck with one-
way plow, wing, sander and an operator to t	he Corporation of the Municipality of
Northern Bruce Peninsula for:	
Plow Route:	<u> </u>

Tandem Snowplow Routes

Winter Season	Patrol Route	Amount	
2025/2026		\$	/hour
2026/2027		\$	/hour
2027/2028		\$	/hour

Tobermory Sidewalk Blower and Sander Route

Winter Season	Sidewalk Blow	ver & Sander Rate	Handwork rate Amount
2025/2026	\$	/hour	\$ /hour
2026/2027	\$	/hour	\$ /hour
2027/2028	\$	/hour	\$ /hour

This rate shall be inclusive and shall include payment for the truck, operator, fuel, maintenance, parts, labour and repairs to the truck and plow equipment for all mounting and dismounting of plows and other preparatory costs, for all overhead and operating costs and for carrying out all work associated with this contract for which a basis for payment is not otherwise provided.

Truck Details

Make:	
Year:	
Model:	
Licence No.:	
Vehicle Weight:	
Registered Gross Weight:	
Front Tire Size:	

Contract PW 2025-05, Rental Cost - Continued

Sidewalk Equipment Details

Make:	
Year:	
Model:	
Description:	
Snowblower and Tractor Details	
Make:	
Year:	
Model:	
Description:	

The Municipality reserves the right to inspect vehicles prior to acceptance.

It is understood that for this Tender to be accepted by the Municipality, the truck and plow equipment must be of sufficient mechanical and physical condition to carry out winter operations as described in this Tender, and must be equal to or exceed the minimums specified.

- 1. Only the registered owner of the truck may submit a bid.
- 2. If the truck is down for repairs for more than three hours in any one day, no standby will be paid.
- 3. Standby shall be paid for each and every day while in the possession of the Municipality.

Termination

This agreement may be terminated by the Municipality at any time if the contractor's equipment fails to perform the work to the satisfaction of the Municipality, or the contractor fails to comply with any of the conditions of this agreement.

Contractor's Information

Contractor's Name:
Signature:
Address:
Telephone Number:
Fax Number:

Accessibility Regulations for Contracted Services

Compliance with Applicable Legislation

The successful Proponent must comply with all applicable municipal, provincial and federal legislation in the performance of its obligations under any contract or agreement with the Municipality, including but not limited to, the Municipal Freedom of Information and Privacy Act, the Occupational Health and Safety Act, the Ontario Human Rights Code, the Pay Equity Act, the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, and the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act. Upon request, the Proponent shall provide the Municipality with written reports confirming such compliance.

The successful Proponent must ensure that they have the experience, training and equipment so that all work performed under the contract or agreement is done safely and in accordance with all applicable health and safety legislation. The successful Proponent acknowledges that they have control over the workplace and are fully responsible for the health and safety of all employees and others present on site.

All final documents provided to the Municipality must conform to Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.0, Level AA. If requested, the Proponent shall provide written proof that all employees have been trained as required under the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act. The Proponent shall be aware and sensitive to accessibility needs.

The successful Proponent shall consider accessibility when purchasing goods or services in accordance with the Municipality's Procurement Policy and incorporate accessible designs and features where possible.

Third Party Health, Safety and Environment Manual

A copy of this document can be obtained from the Municipal Office.

Commitment Agreement

This agreement and accompanying health and safety requirements has been prepared to assist you in completing your contracts/projects with the Municipality of Northern Bruce Peninsula.

The requirements, best practices and procedures outlined in this manual are not intended to replace, undermine or supersede any laws, regulations or liability attached to your contract.

In the event of a conflict between the laws and regulations, you must comply with the governing law or regulation and report the conflict to the appropriate Municipal supervisor or manager.

Contracting company:
Contact supervisor/manager:
Contact name:
Company address:
Phone number:
Email address:
I/we,, representing the above, fully understand and have complied with and will continue to comply with, the legal requirements, Procedures and Best Practices of the Municipality of Northern Bruce Peninsula's Third Party Agreement.
Under this agreement, all employees and subcontractors retained must also comply with the legal requirements, Procedures and Best Practices of the Municipality's Third Party Agreement.
The contractor ensures that all parties retained to work for the Municipality of Northern Bruce Peninsula are competent and currently certified or qualified to perform their trades/occupations.
The contractor must carry \$2 million liability insurance to bid on any Municipal contracts.
Signed: Date:

Plow Beat Information Attached

Cape Chin Area
Operator: Contractor
Equipment: Contract

Road	Class	Sanding	From 911 #:	To 911 #:	Kilometres
Cape Chin North Road	5	No	0	592	5.92
Cape Chin South Road	5	No	0	534	5.34
Carter Road	6	No	0	166	1.66
Caudle Side Road	4	Corners Only	0	208	2.08
Cherry Hill Road	6	No	0	386	3.86
Constance Drive	6	No	0	18	0.18
Cottage Cove Road	6	No	0	20	0.20
East Road	4	Corners Only	0	1252	12.52
Forty Hills Road	4	Corners Only	0	170	1.70
Forty Hills Road	6	No	170	216	0.46
Forty Hills Road	6	No	387	554	1.67
Fox Drive	6	No	0	22	0.22
Isthmus Bay Road	4	Yes	0	338	3.38
Lindsay Road 5	6	No	315	418	1.03
Tammy's Cove Road	5	Corners Only	0	334	3.34
Whippoorwill Road	6	Yes	0	100	1.00
					44.56

Dorcas Bay Road

Operator: Contractor Equipment: Contract

Road	Class	Sanding	From 911#:	To 911 #:	Kilometres
Ada Crescent	6	No	0	22	0.22
Beach Road	6	No	0	44	0.44
Borden Drive	6	No	0	118	1.18
Cameron Lake Road	5	Corners Only	0	330	3.30
Cameron Lake Road Spur	6	No	218	222	0.07
Cyprus Lake Road	Road	not assumed by Notes for snow remova			5.50
Dorcas Bay Road	4	Corners	0	1230	12.30
Hidden Valley Road	6	No	0	133	1.33
Huron Drive	6	No	0	154	1.54
Johnsons Harbour Road	6	No	0	688	6.88
Pedwell Drive	6	No	0	76	0.76
Pedwell Point Drive	6	No	0	120	1.20
Robert Allen Drive	. 6	No	0	348	3.48
Willow Creek Crescent	6	No	0	74	0.74
		,	,		38.94

Dyers Bay and Lindsay Road 30 Area

Road	Class	Sanding	From 911 #:	To 911 #:	Kilometres
Bartley Drive	5	Yes	0	208	2.08
Birch Road	6	No	0	36	0.36
Brinkman's Road	6	No	0	204	2.04
Concession 6 & 7	6	No	0	38	0.38
Crane Lake Road	6	No	0	275	2.75
Daly's Road	6	No	0	62	0.62
Dyers Bay Road	5	Yes	0	1246	12.46
Harkins Road	6	No	0	68	0.68
Hope Drive	6	No	0	68	0.68
Ira Lake Road	6	No	0	636	6.36
Lindsay Road 30	5	Yes	0	708	7.08
Lindsay Road 40	6	No	0	205	2.05
Lindsay Road 40	5	Corners Only	205	536	3.31
McNair Road	6	No	0	70	0.70
Old Pine Tree Road	6	No	0	88	0.88
Pine Tree Harbour Road	6	No	0	152	1.52
Robbins Drive	6	No	0	110	1.10
Shoreline Drive	6	No	0	60	0.60
Shouldice Lake Road	6	No	0	202	2.02
	1100	1.000		-	47.67

Pike Bay Area

Operator: Contractor Equipment: Contract

Road	Class	Sanding	From 911 #:	To 911 #:	Kilometres
Aberdeen Avenue	6	No	0	46	0.46
Allan Lane	6	No	30	56	0.26
Anchors Lane	6	No	0	14	0.14
Baywatch Drive	6	No	0	72	0.72
Bell Drive	6	No	0	42	0.42
Bellmore Lane	6	No	0	2	0.02
Cove Street	6	No	0	10	0.10
Devils Glen	6	No	0	151	1.51
Forbes Road	6	No	0	108	1.08
Fraser Road	6	No	0	26	0.26
Island View Road	6	No	0	26	0.26
Julian Drive	6	No	0	36	0.36
Little Pike Bay Road	4	Yes	0	852	8.52
Little Point Road	6	No	0	22	0.22
Makela Road	6	No	0	2	0.10
Manfor Street	6	No	0	12	0.12
Manley Street	6	No	0	16	0.16
Paradise Drive	6	No	0	62	0.62
Pike Bay Road	4	Yes	0	892	8.92
Poplar Crescent	6	No	0	38	0.38
Purgatory Road	6	No	0	26	0.26
Ronald Street	6	No	0	55	0.55
Sand Dune Road	6	No	0	22	0.22
Stewarts Point	6	No	0	54	0.54
Sunset Drive	6	No	0	1	0.01
Sutter Road	5	Partial	0	190	1.90
The Bury Road	6	No	259	460	2.01
Wandabend Road	6	No	0	30	0.30

Pike Bay Area

Operator: Contractor Equipment: Contract

Whiskey Harbour Road	5	Yes	0	402	4.02
Widgeon Cove Road	6	Corners Only	0	298	2.98
		•			37.42

Tobermory Sidewalks and Parking Lots Operator: Contractor Equipment: Contract

Description	Location	From	То	Distance/ Area	Width (Metres)
Access Road	Sewage Lagoon	N/A	N/A	700 metres	A/N
Alley	Library	Bay Street South	Head Street	70 metres	1.45 - 2.3
Parking Lot	Bay Street South (Harbour Area)	N/A	N/A	1,200 m ²	N/A
Parking Lot	Medical Clinic	N/A	N/A		N/A
Parking Lot	Community Centre/Fire Hall	N/A	N/A	3,600 m ²	N/A
Parking Lot	Meeting Place	N/A	N/A	900 m ²	N/A
Parking Lot	Museum	N/A	N/A	120 m ²	N/A
Parking Lot	Legion Street	N/A	N/A	3,395 m²	N/A
Parking Lot	St. Edmunds Waste Disposal Site	Occasional			
Sidewalk	Bay Street South (South side)	Brock Street	Highway 6	305 metres	1.5 - 1.6
Sidewalk	Brock Street (East side)	Head Street	12 Brock Street	75 to 100 metres	1.5
Sidewalk	Head Street (South side)	Highway 6	Brock Street	250 metres	1.5
Sidewalk	Head Street (South side)	Brock Street	Post Office	40 metres	1.5
Sidewalk	Head Street (North side)	Brock Street	Harpur Drive	185 metres	1.5
Sidewalk	Highway 6 (East side)	7420 Highway 6	Head Street	75 metres	1.5
Sidewalk	Highway 6 (East side)	Head Street	Bay Street South	135 metres	1.5
Street	Bay Street (to Sewage Station)	9 Bay Street	15 Bay Street	45 metres	N/A
Street	Ellen Street	Carlton Street	End	45 metres	N/A
Street	Adelaide Street	Head Street	End	85 metres	N/A
Street	Legion Street	N/A	N/A	10 metres	N/A
Street	Head Street	44 Head Street	End	90 metres	A/N